
CME 507 Sustainable Transportation Systems  
(Currently under CME 594 – Transportation, Energy, Air Quality) 

Spring, 2007 
 

Call Number: 24031  Time and Day: 11:00-1:50 T  Classroom: 1033 ERF  
Instructor: Professor Jane Lin, ERF 2089; janelin@uic.edu; 996-3068  Credit hours: 4 
 
Objectives:  

1. Introduce basic terminology, regulations, and analytical framework of transportation 
energy and air quality 

2. Introduce the concepts of transportation sustainability, and life cycle analysis techniques 
3. To have students become familiar with basic transportation emissions and energy models 

 
Prerequisites by topic: CME 508  
 
Course Points: assignments (30%), presentations/class discussions (30%), class project (40%) 
 
Readings: to be distributed in class (see attached list of references) 
 
Assignments: there are three assignments 
 
Class project: air quality assessment of transportation system using what’s learned in class. 
Final presentation of the class project is required. 
 
Presentations: three presentations in addition to the final class project presentation are required. 
Topics are to be assigned during the class. 
 
Computer usage: two computer labs: MOBILE6 and GREET at the CME computer lab. Please 
acquire userID and password from Kassem Saad at 1258 SEL, 6-3291, ksaad@uic.edu. You 
need to see him in person. 
 
Blackboard website: course notes, announcements, assignments, material etc will be posted on 
the website. Please check the website as often as possible. 
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Tentative schedule: 
 
                                    Date   Topic       
 
Introduction  January 16  (a) Environmental regulations in the U.S: 

-National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA), 
-Motor vehicle emissions control, and  
-Fuel economy regulations. 
(b) Class discussion: sustainable transportation 
indicators and challenges; integrating sustainability 
into transportation planning process 

   Assignment #1: literature review and writing 
 

Jan 23   No class due to TRB  
Part I    Jan 30 - Feb 20 Transportation network analysis basics  

Jan 30-Feb 13  (a) Transportation network analysis 
Feb 20   (b) VMT estimation methods and issues, and  

class discussion: issues with travel models in 
emission analysis 

Feb 27   (c) Student presentation: (i) land use, transportation, 
and air quality; (ii) sustainable transportation 

Assignment #2: Network analysis 
 
Part II   Mar 6 – Apr 3 Mobile source emission and air quality modeling  

Mar 6   (a) Mobile emission basics, and (b) Class 
discussion: vehicle activity data issues 

Mar 12   (c) Mobile emission modeling and issues 
Mar 19   (d) Computer lab: MOBILE6 
Mar 26   No class due to spring break  
Apr 3   (e) Basis of air quality modeling 
Class project: topic TBD 

 
Part III  Apr 10- 24  Transportation energy analysis 

Apr 10   (a) Life-cycle analysis principles 
Apr 17   (b) Life cycle analysis for advanced vehicle 

technologies, and GREET model 
Apr 24   (c) Computer lab: GREET 
Assignment #3: transportation energy analysis 

 
Part IV  May 1   Environmental impact assessment 
 
Conclusion  Finals week  Class project presentations 
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References (to be updated): 
 
(I) Introduction – Motor vehicle emission control history/regulations and fuel economy 

development in the U.S. 
 
Brown, D. (ed.) (2002) Effectiveness and Impact of Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFÉ) 
Standards. Transportation Research Record & National Research Council, National Academy 
Press, Washington D.C. 
 
Gertz, C. (2003) Lessons from a landmark US policy for transportation, land use and air quality, 
and implications for policy changes in other countries. UNESCO, Blackwell Publishing Ltd., 
Malden, MA 02148 
 
Gordon, D. (1991) Steering a New Course: Transportation, Energy, and the Environment. Union 
of Concerned Scientists, Island Press, Washington D.C. 
 
Howitt, A.M. and E.M. Moore (1999) Linking Transportation and Air Quality Planning: 
Implementation of the transportation conformity regulations in 15 nonattainment areas. A report 
to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. 
Department of Transportation, EPA420-R-99-011 
 
Shrouds, J.M. (1995) Challenges and Opportunities for Transportation: Implementation of the 
Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 and the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 
1991. Transportation 22:193-215 
 
Davis, S.C. and S.W. Diegel (2004) Transportation Energy Data Book, edition 24. Prepared for 
the Office of Planning, Budget Formulation and Analysis, Energy Efficiency and Renewable 
Energy, U.S. Department of Energy. Center for Transportation Analysis, Oak Ridge National 
Laboratory, Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37831-6073 
 
Transportation Research Board (1997) Toward A Sustainable Future: Addressing the Long-Term 
Effects of Motor Vehicle Transportation on Climate and Ecology, special report #251, National 
Research Council, Washington D.C., October 
 
U.S. Federal Highway Administration (2001) Transportation Conformity Reference Guide, 
Section A: Overview of the Transportation Conformity Requirements and Process. U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Washington DC, accessible at 
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/conform.htm 
 
U.S. General Accounting Office (2000) Automobile Fuel Economy: Potential Effects of 
Increasing the Corporate Average Fuel Economy Standards, report to the Chairman, Committee 
on Commerce, Science and Transportation, U.S. Senate. GAO/RCED-00-194 
 
Waxman, H.A. (1992) The Clean Air Act of 1990: An Overview of Its History and Policy, in 
Clean Air Law and Regulation (ed. T.A. Vanderver, Jr.), the Bureau of National Affairs, Inc., 
Washington DC 
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(II) Part I – Regional Transportation Modeling Practice for Air Quality Analysis 
 
Overview 
 
U.S. Department of Transportation (1993) Manual of Regional Transportation Modeling 
Practice for Air Quality Analysis. Prepared by Deakin, Harvey, Skabardonis, Inc., Berkely, 
sponsored by the National Association of Regional Council, Washington D.C., accessible at 
http://tmip.fhwa.dot.gov/clearninghouse/docs/airquality/mrtm/ch2.strm 
 
Outwater, M.L., W.R. Loudon (1994) Travel Forecasting Guidelines for Federal and California 
Clean Air Acts. Transportation Research Record 1444, 100-117, Transportation Research 
Board, Washington D.C. 
 
Sawyer R.F., R.A. Harley, S.H. Cadle, J.M. Norbeck, R. Slott, H.A. Bravo (2000) Mobile 
sources critical review: 1998 NARSTO assessment. Atmospheric Environment 34: 2161-2181 
 
 
VMT estimation methods 
 
Cambridage Systematics et al. (1996) Use of locality-specific transportation data for the 
development of mobile source emission inventories. Final report, prepared for Mobile Sources 
Committee, Emission Inventory Improvement Program, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
Office of Mobile Sources, Ann Arbor, MI 48105, September. 
 
DeCorla-Souza, P., J. Everett, J. Cosby, and P. Lim (1994) Trip-based Approach To Estimate 
Emissions with Environmental Protection Agency’s MOBILE Model. Transportation Research 
Record 1444, pp.118-125, Transportation Research Record, National Research Council, 
Washington D.C. 
 
Ito, D.T., D.A. Niemeier, and G. Garry (2001) Conformity: How VMT-speed distribution can 
affect mobile emission inventories. Transportation 28: 409-425 
 
Kumapley, R.K. And J.D. Fricker (1996) Review Of Methods For Estimating Vehicles Miles 
Traveled. Transportation Research Record 1551, Transportation Research Board, Washington 
DC 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (1999) Guidance for the development of facility type 
VMT and speed distributions. Prepared by Assessment and Modeling Division, Office of Mobile 
Sources, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. M6.SPD.004 
 
 
Trip assignment/network analysis 
 
Nagurney, A. (2000) Congested urban transportation networks and emission paradoxes. 
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Transportation Research Part D 5, 145-151 
 
Benedek, C.M. and L.R. Rilett (1998) Equitable traffic assignment with environmental cost 
functions. Journal of Transportation Engineering Vol. 124, No.1, pp. 16-22 
 
Boyce, D., B. Ralevic-Dekic, and H.Bar-Gera (2004) Convergence of Traffic Assignments: How 
much is Enough. Journal of Transportation Engineering, Vol. 130, No. 1, pp.49-55 
 
Rilett, L.R. and C.M. Benedek (1994) Traffic Assignment Under Environmental and Equity 
Objectives. Transportation Research Record 1443, pp. 92-99, Transportation Research Record, 
National Research Council, Washington D.C. 
 
Sugawara S. and D.A. Niemeier (2002) How much Can Vehicle Emissions Be Reduced? 
Exploratory Analysis of an Upper Boundary Using an Emissions-Optimized Trip Assignment. 
Transportation Research Record 1815, pp. 29-37, Transportation Research Record, National 
Research Council, Washington D.C. 
 
Sheffi, Y. (1985) Urban Transportation Networks: Equilibrium Analysis with Mathematical 
Programming Methods. Prentice-Hall press, Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632 
 
 
Land use, transportation, and air quality => sustainable transportation 
 
Camagni, R., M.C. Gibelli, P. Rigamonti (2002) Urban mobility and urban form: the social and 
environmental costs of different patterns of urban expansion. Ecological Economics 40: 199-216 
 
Frank, L.D., B. Stone Jr., W. Bachman (2000) Linking land use with household vehicle 
emissions in the central Puget Sound: methodological framework and findings.  Transportation 
Research Part D 5: 173-196 
 
Richardson, B.C. (2005) Sustainable transport: analysis frameworks. Journal of Transport 
Geography 13: 29-39 
 
Ryan S. and J.A. Throgmorton (2003) Sustainable transportation and land development on the 
periphery: a case study of Freiburg, Germany and Chula Vista, California. Journal of 
Transportation Research Part D: Transportation and Environment 8: 37-52 
 
Southworth, F. (2001) On the potential impacts of land use change policies on automobile 
vehicle miles of travel. Energy Policy 29, 1271-1283 
 
Steg, L. and R. Gifford (2005) Sustainable transportation and quality of life. Journal of transport 
geography 13: 59-69 
 
 
(III) Part II – Motor vehicle emissions characteristics and modeling 
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Emission characteristics 
 
Barth, M., An, F., Norbeck, J., and Ross, M. (1996) Modal Emissions Modeling: A 
Physical Approach, Transportation Research Record 1520, National Research Council, 
Transportation Research Board, Wash. DC: 81-88 
 
Barth, M., Younglove, T., Wenzel, T., et al. (1997) Analysis of Modal Emissions From 
Diverse In-Use Vehicle Fleet, Transportation Research Record 1587, National Research 
Council, Transportation Research Board, Wash. DC: 73-84 
 
Cernuschi, S., Giugliano, M., Cemin, A, and Giovannini, I. (1995) Modal Analysis of 
Vehicle Emission Factors, The Science of the Total Environment 169: 175-183 
 
Childress, J.P. and Wilson Jr., J.H. (1994) Analysis of Real-time Vehicle Hydrocarbon 
Emissions Data, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Air and Energy Engineering, 
Research Laboratory, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711, EPA/600/SR-94/059, July 
 
Ericsson E. (2001) Independent driving pattern factors and their influence on fuel-use and 
exhaust emission factors. Transportation Research Part D 6: 325-345 
 
Etyemezian, V., H. Kuhns, J. Gillies, J. Chow, K. Hendrickson, M. McGown, M. Pitchford 
(2003) Vehicle-based road dust emission measurement (III): effect of speed, traffic volume, 
location, and season on PM10 road dust emissions in the Treasure Valley, ID. Atmospheric 
Environment 37: 4583-4593 
 
Gabele, P. (1995) Exhaust emissions from in-use alternative fuel vehicles. Journal of Air & 
Waste Management Association 45: 770-777 
 
Ibarra-Berastegi, G., I. Madariaga, A. Elias, E. Agirre, and J. Uria (2001) Long-term changes of 
ozone and traffic in Bilbao. Atmospheric Environment 35: 5581-5592 
 
Holmen, B.A. and D.A. Niemeier (1998) Characterizing the effects of driver variability on real-
world vehicle emissions. Transportation Research Part D Vol 3, No. 2, pp. 117-128 
 
LeBlanc, D.C., Saunders, F.M., Meyer, M.D., and Guensler, R. (1995) Driving Pattern 
Variability and Impacts on Vehicle Carbon Monoxide Emissions, Transportation 
Research Record 1472, National Research Council, Transportation Research Board, 
Wash. DC: 45-52 
 
Winebrake, J.J. and M.L. Deaton (1997) A Comparative Analysis of Emissions Deterioration for 
In-Use Alternative Fuel Vehicles. Journal of Air & Waste Management Association 47: 1291-
1296 
 
Zachariadis, T., L. Ntziachristos, Z. Samaras (2001) The effect of age and technological change 
on motor vehicle emissions. Transportation Research Part D 6: 221-227 
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Zietsman, J., T.L. Forrest, D.G. Perkinson, and L.R. Rilett (2005) Emissions of Light Duty 
Gasoline Vehicles Due to Idling and Restarts: A Comparative Study, on CD-ROM of the 84th 
Transportation Research Board Annual Meeting, January, Washington D.C. 
 
 
Vehicle characteristics data issues 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (1998) Update of Fleet Characterization Data for Use in 
MOBILE6 –Final report, EPA240-P-98-016, June 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2001) Fleet Characterization Data for MOBILE6: 
Development and Use of Age Distributions, Average Annual Mileage Accumulation Rates, and 
Projected Vehicle Counts for Use in MOBILE6, EPA420-R-01-047, M6.FLT.007, September 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2002) Updating Fuel Economy Estimates in 
MOBILE6.3, draft, EPA420-P-02-005, M6-GHG.001, August 
 
 
Mobile emission modeling issues 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2002) User’s Guide to MOBILE6.1 and MOBILE6.2: 
Mobile Source Emission Factor Model, EPA420-R-02-028, October 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2004) Technical Guidance on the Use of MOBILE6.2 
for Emission Inventory Preparation, EPA420-R-04-013, August 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2003) Proof of Concept Investigation for the Physical 
Emission Rate Estimator (PERE) to be used in MOVES, EPA420-R-03-005, February 
 
Ahn, K., H. Rakha, A. Trani, M. van Aerde (2002) Estimating vehicle fuel consumption and 
emissions based on instantaneous speed and acceleration levels. Journal of Transportation 
Engeering Vol. 128, No. 2, pp. 182-190 
 
Barth, M., F. An, T. Younglove, G. Scora, C. Levine, M. Ross, T. Wenzel (2001) 
Comprehensive Model Emissions Model (CMEM), version 2.02, User’s Guide, NCHRP project 
25-11, FHWA, Washington D.C. 
 
Dion, F., M. van Aerde, H. Rakha (2000) Mesoscopic fuel consumption and vehicle emission 
rate estimation as a function of average speed and number of stops, on CD-ROM of the 79th 
Transportation Research Board Annual Meeting, Washington D.C., January 
 
Joumard, R., P. Jost, J. Hickman, D. Hassel (1995) Hot passenger car emissions modeling as a 
function of instantaneous speed and acceleration. The Science of the Total Environment 169: 
167-174 
 
Rakha, H., K. Ahn, A. Trani (2003) Development of VT-micro model for estimating hot 
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stabilized light duty vehicle and truck emissions, on CD-ROM of the 82nd Transportation 
Research Board Annual Meeting, Washington D.C., January 
 
Rakha, H., K. Ahn, A. Trani (2003) Microscopic modeling of vehicle start emissions, on CD-
ROM of the 82nd Transportation Research Board Annual Meeting, Washington D.C., January  
 
 
John, C., R. Friedrich, J. Staehelin, K. Schlapfer, W.A. Stahel (1999) Comparison of emission 
factors for road traffic from a tunnel study (Gubrist tunnel, Switzerland) and from emission 
modeling. Atmospheric Environment 33: 3367-3376 
 
Joumard, R., F. Philippe, R. Vidon (1999) Reliability of the current models of instantaneous 
pollutant emissions. The Science of the total environment 235: 133-142 
 
Winther, M. (1998) Petrol passenger car emissions calculated with different emission models. 
The Science of the Total Environment 224: 149-160 
 
 
Basis of air quality modeling 
 
Benson, P.E. (1979) CALINE3 – A Versatile Dispersion Model for Predicting Air Pollutant 
Levels Near Highways and Arterial Streets. Office of Transportation Laboratory, California 
Department of Transportation 
 
Turner, D.B. (1994) Workbook of Atmospheric Dispersion Estimates: an introduction to 
dispersion modeling. Second edition, ISBN 1-56670-023-X, Lewis Publishers 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (1992) Guideline for modeling carbon monoxide from 
roadway intersections, EPA-454/R-92-005, November 
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (1995) User’s Guide to CAL3QHC Version 2.0: A 
Modeling Methodology for Predicting Pollutant Concentrations Near Roadway Intersections. 
Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711 
 
 
(IV) Part III – Transportation & energy 
 
David Greene (1996) Transportation and Energy, Eno Transportation Foundation, Inc., 
Lansdowne, Virginia. 
 
Akisawa, A. and Y. Kaya (1998) Two model analyses of the urban structure of minimal 
transportation energy consumption. Applied Energy 61, 25-39 
 
Bezdek, R.H. and R.M. Wendling (2003) Potential long-term impacts of changes in US vehicle 
fuel efficiency standards. Energy Policy  
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Dagsvik, J.K., T. Wennemo, D.G. Wetterwald, R. Aaberge (2002) Potential demand for 
alternative fuel vehicles. Transportation Research Part B 36: 361-384 
 
Energy Information Administration (1997) Household Vehicles Energy Consumption 1994, 
DOE/EIA-0464(94), August 
 
General Motors Corporation, Argonne National Laboratory, BP, ExxonMobil, and Shell (2001) 
Well-to-Wheel Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Advanced Fuel/Vehicle Systems: A 
North American Analysis, Volume 1, Executive Summary Report, ANL/ES/RP-104528; June. 
 
General Motors Corporation, Argonne National Laboratory, BP, ExxonMobil, and Shell (2001) 
Well-to-Wheel Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Advanced Fuel/Vehicle Systems: A 
North American Analysis, Volume 2, Main Report, ANL/ES/RP-104528; June. 
 
General Motors Corporation, Argonne National Laboratory, BP, ExxonMobil, and Shell (2001) 
Well-to-Wheel Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Advanced Fuel/Vehicle Systems: A 
North American Analysis, Volume 3, Well-to-Tank Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
of Transportation Fuels, ANL/ES/RP-104528; June. 
 
Greene, D.L. and S.E. Plotkin (2001) Energy futures for the US transport sector. Energy Policy 
29, 1255-1270 
 
Hackney J. and R. de Neufville (2001) Life cycle model of alternative fuel vehicles: emissions, 
energy, and cost trade-offs. Transportation Research Part A 35, 243-266. 
 
Wang, M. (2002) Fuel choice for fuel-cell vehicles: well-to-wheels energy and emission impacts. 
Journal of Power Sources 112, 307-321. 
 
 
(V) Part IV – Environmental impact assessment 
 
Adler, K., M. Grant, W. Schroeer (1998) The emissions reduction potential of the congestion 
mitigation and air quality improvement (CMAQ) program: a preliminary assessment, on CD-
ROM of the 77th Transportation Research Board Annual Meeting, Washington D.C., January 
 
Austin, B.S., J.G. Heiken, S.B. Shepard, L.L. Duvall (1994) Methodologies for estimating 
emission and travel activity effects of TCMs. Prepared for Office of Air Quality Planning and 
Standards and Office of Mobile Sources, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, SYSAPP94-
92/096 
 
Blanken, P.D., J. Dillon, G. Wismann (2001) The impact of an air quality advisory program on 
voluntary mobile source air pollution reduction. Atmospheric Environment 35: 2417-2421 
 
Cambridge Systematics, Inc. et al. (1997) Quantifying Air Quality and Other Benefits and Costs 
of Transportation Control Measures, draft interim report, NCHRP Project 8-33 
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Crabbe, I. and D.M. Elsom (1998) Air Quality Effectiveness of Traffic Management Schemes: 
U.K. and European Case Studies. Environmental Monitoring and Assessment 52: 173-183 
 
Delucchi, M.A., J.J. Murphy, D.R. McCubbin (2002) The health and visibility cost of air 
pollution: a comparison of estimation methods. Journal of Environmental Management 64, 139-
152 
 
Deysher, B. and D. Pickrell (1997) Emissions Reductions from Vehicle Retirement Programs. 
Transportation Research Record 1587, pp. 121-127, Transportation Research Board, National 
Research Council, Washington D.C. 
 
Euritt, M.A., M. Martello, J. Qin, A. Weissmann, S. Bernow, M. Fulmer, I. Peters (1996) 
Strategies for Reducing Energy Consumption and Emissions in Texas Transportation Sector. 
Transportation Research Record 1520, pp. 122-130, Transportation Research Board, National 
Research Council, Washington D.C. 
 
Greene, D.L., K.G. Duleep (1993) Costs and benefits of automotive fuel economy improvement: 
a partial analysis. Transportation Research Part A Vol 27A, No. 3, pp. 217-235 
 
Hauschild, M.Z. (2005) Assessing Environmental Impacts in a Life-cycle Perspective. 
Environmental Science & Technology Vol. 39, Issue 4, pp. 81A-88A 
 
ICF Consulting et al. (2001) Social Costs of Air Pollution from On-road Motor Vehicles. 
Prepared for EPA Office of Air and Radiation, 401 M St. SW, Washington D.C. 20460 
 
Leiby, P., J. Rubin (2001) Effectiveness and efficiency of policies to promote alternative fuel 
vehicles. Transportation Research Record 1750, pp. 84-91, Transportation Research Board, 
National Research Council, Washington D.C. 
 
Molina, L.T. and M.J. Molina (eds.) (2002) Air Quality in the Mexico Megacity: an integrated 
assessment. Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge, MA, U.S.A. Kluwer Academic 
Publisher 
 
Monn, C. (2001) Exposure assessment of air pollutants: a review on spatial heterogeneity and 
indoor/outdoor/personal exposure to suspended particular matter, nitrogen dioxide and ozone. 
Atmospheric Environment 35: 1-32 
 
Sullivan, J.L., R.E. Baker, B.A. Boyer, R.H. Hammerle, T.E. Kenney, L.Muniz, T.J. Wallington 
(2004) CO2 emission benefit of diesel (versus gasoline) powered vehicles. Environmental 
Science and Technology, Vol 38, No. 12, 3217-3223 
 
U.S. Department of Transportation (1996) Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
Program Review. Office of Environment and Planning, Federal Highway Administration, 
Washington DC 20590 
 
Yu, L.E., L.M. Hildemann, W.R. Ott (1996) A mathematical model for predicting trends in 
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carbon monoxide emissions and exposures on urban arterial highways. Journal of Air & Waste 
Management Association 46: 430-440 
 
 
Websites 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA): http://www.epa.gov 

Office of Air and Radiation: http://www.epa.gov/oar 
 Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards: http://www.epa.gov/oar/oaqps 
EPA, Office of Transportation & Air Quality: http://www.epa.gov/otaq/ 
Transportation conformity: http://www.epa.gov/otaq/transp/traqconf.htm 
National annual air quality trend: http://www.epa.gov/airtrends/reports.html 

California Air Resources Board: http://www.arb.ca.gov/ 
Air quality models: http://www.arb.ca.gov/html/soft.htm#modeling 

U.S. Department of Energy: http://www.energy.gov 
Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy: http://www.eere.energy.gov 

Oak Ridge National Laboratory 
Center for Transportation Analysis: http://cta.ornl.gov 
 Transportation Energy Data Book: http://www-cta.ornl.gov/data 

Argonne National Laboratory: www.anl.gov 
GREET model: http://greet.anl.gov 

U.S. Census Bureau: http://www.census.gov 
Vehicle inventory and use survey: http://www.census.gov/svsd/www/content.html 

U.S. Department of Transportation: http://www.dot.gov 
Bureau of Transportation Statistics: http://www.bts.gov 
National household travel survey: http://nhts.ornl.gov 

Illinois State EPA: http://www.epa.state.il.us/ 
Illinois annual air quality reports: http://www.epa.state.il.us/air/air-quality-report/ 

Illinois Department of Transportation: http://www.dot.state.il.us 
Illinois State Toll Highway Authority: http://www.illinoistollway.com 

http://www.epa.gov/
http://www.epa.gov/oar
http://www.epa.gov/oar/oaqps
http://www.epa.gov/otaq/
http://www.epa.gov/otaq/transp/traqconf.htm
http://www.epa.gov/airtrends/reports.html
http://www.arb.ca.gov/
http://www.arb.ca.gov/html/soft.htm
http://www.energy.gov/
http://www.eere.energy.gov/
http://cta.ornl.gov/
http://www-cta.ornl.gov/data
http://www.anl.gov/
http://greet.anl.gov/
http://www.census.gov/
http://www.census.gov/svsd/www/content.html
http://www.dot.gov/
http://www.bts.gov/
http://nhts.ornl.gov/
http://www.epa.state.il.us/
http://www.epa.state.il.us/air/air-quality-report/
http://www.dot.state.il.us/
http://www.illinoistollway.com/
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